
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Nicola Meurer, Democratic Services Officer, 
Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01235 422523

E-mail: nicola.meurer@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 26 November 2018

Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 5 DECEMBER 2018 AT 6.30 PM

THE RIDGEWAY, THE BEACON, PORTWAY, WANTAGE, OX12 9BY

Members of the Committee:
Sandy Lovatt (Chairman)
Janet Shelley (Vice-
Chairman)
Stuart Davenport
Robert Hall

Jenny Hannaby
Anthony Hayward
Bob Johnston

Ben Mabbett
Catherine Webber

Substitutes Councillors
Yvonne Constance
Margaret Crick
St John Dickson

Katie Finch
Chris Palmer
Helen Pighills

Julia Reynolds
Emily Smith
Reg Waite

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.



2

1. Chairman's announcements  

To receive any announcements from the chairman, and general housekeeping 
matters.

2. Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

3. Minutes  (Pages 4 - 6)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Planning Committee minutes of the 
meeting held on 14 November 2018.  

4. Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

5. Urgent business  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent.  

6. Public participation  

To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.  



3

Planning applications

All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (e.g. within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports 
within this agenda are held (normally electronically) in the application file (working 
file) and referenced by its application number.  These are available to view at the 
Council Offices (135 Milton Park, Milton) during normal office hours.

Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting.

Summary index of applications

Site Address Proposal Application No Page.

7. Land south of 
Red Gables, 
Kings Lane, 
Faringdon, SN7 
7SS  

Part retrospective: Proposed 
replacement dwelling.

P18/V1820/FUL 7 - 34

8. Land off 
Sheepstead 
Road, Marcham, 
Abingdon  

Variation of Condition 2 - approved 
plans on application ref. 
P16/V3224/FUL 
(erection of 47 dwellings with 
associated means of access, car 
parking, footpath links, amenity space 
and landscaping).

P18/V2470/FUL 35 - 49

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic 



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 14 November 2018 Pl.1

Minutes
of a meeting of the
Planning Committee
held on Wednesday, 14 November 2018 at 
6.30 pm in the The Ridgeway, The Beacon, 
Portway, Wantage, OX12 9BY

Open to the public, including the press

Present: 

Members: Councillors Sandy Lovatt (Chairman), Janet Shelley (Vice-Chairman), 
Robert Hall, Anthony Hayward, Vicky Jenkins (in place of Ben Mabbett) Bob Johnston 
and Catherine Webber

Officers: Sally Appleyard, Emily Hamerton, Andy Heron and Nicola Meurer

Also present: Councillor Margaret Crick

Pl.82 Chairman's announcements 

The chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting, outlined the procedure to be followed 
and advised on emergency evacuation arrangements.

Pl.83 Apologies for absence 

Councillors Ben Mabbett and Stuart Davenport had tendered his apologies, Councillor 
Vicky Jenkins substituted in Councillor Mabbett’s place.

Pl.84 Minutes 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 31 October 2018 as a correct 
record and agree that the Chairman sign them as such.

Pl.85 Declarations of interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

Pl.86 Urgent business 

There was no urgent business.

Pl.87 Public participation 

The list showing members of the public who had registered to speak was tabled at the 
meeting.

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 14 November 2018 Pl.2

Pl.88 P18/V2222/FUL - Abingdon United Football Club, Northcourt Road, 
Abingdon 

The committee considered application P18/V2222/FUL to vary Condition 4 of planning 
permission P96/V1020/EX to amend the opening times to the following: Monday – 
Thursday 09:00 to 00:30; Friday – Saturday 09:00 to 01:30; and New Year’s Eve – 09:00 
to 01:30 at Abingdon United Football Club, Northcourt Road, Abingdon.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Bill Fletcher and John Blackmore spoke in support of the application.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/V2222/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions:

1. Hours of operation.
2. Compliance with approved noise management programme.

Pl.89 P18/V2226/FUL - 18 North Avenue, Abingdon 

Councillor Sandy Lovatt, one of the local ward councillors, stepped down from the 
committee and took no part in the debate or voting for this item. Councillor Janet Shelley 
chaired the item.

The committee considered application P18/V2226/FUL to demolish the existing bungalow 
and outbuildings and to erect two four-bedroom semi-detached houses with off-street 
parking and additional vehicle access at 18 North Avenue, Abingdon.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Linda Stone, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application.  

Paul Southouse, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

Sandy Lovatt and Margaret Crick, the local ward councillors, spoke to the application.  

In response to questions raised by the committee, the officers reported that:
 A Building Research Establishment (BRE) sunlight assessment can be carried out 

at the request of the committee.
 The inspector’s statement at the previous appeal on this site did not have concerns 

regarding design and scale of the then proposed flats.
 Extra conditions can be included for car parking to be in accordance with the 

submitted plans; Class F (hardstanding) permitted development rights to be 
removed; and slab levels.

Committee members were not satisfied that they had sufficient evidence concerning the 
potential loss of light to neighbouring properties and were minded to defer the application 

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 14 November 2018 Pl.3

to request a BRE sunlight assessment to be carried out. Members also requested that 
when the application is brought back to committee, extra conditions are included for car 
parking to be in accordance with the submitted plans; slab levels; and for Class F 
(hardstanding) permitted development rights to be removed.

A motion, moved and seconded, to defer the application for the reason given above, was 
declared carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to defer consideration of application P18/V2226/FUL to allow for a BRE 
sunlight assessment to be carried out. 

The meeting closed at 7.20 pm

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

APPLICATION NO. P18/V1820/FUL
SITE Land south of Red Gables Kings Lane 

Faringdon, SN7 7SS
PARISH LONGCOT
PROPOSAL Part retrospective: Proposed replacement 

dwelling (amended drainage plans received 7th 
November 2018).

WARD MEMBER(S) Simon Howell
Elaine Ware

APPLICANT Martin Leach
OFFICER Andy Heron

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that planning permission is granted, subject to the 
following conditions:

Standard
1. Time limit - full application. 
2. Approved plans list.

Prior to occupation
3. Boundary details provided in accordance with plans.

Compliance
4. Materials in accordance with plans.
5. Permitted development restriction – roof alterations.

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application was presented to committee on 31 October 2018. Following 

concerns expressed about drainage members resolved to defer the application 
for clarification on the drainage proposal and for a site visit to be carried out. 
The previous committee report and minutes of the meeting are attached at 
Appendix 1.

1.2 The applicants have since submitted an amended drainage plan (drawing no. 
1151-S-03) and drainage details submitted by Wilsham drainage consultants 
received on 7th November 2018. Officers have sent these details to the 
Council’s drainage officer for review. The revised plans and drainage details 
are attached at Appendix 2.

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 A summary of consultations and representations is contained in the previous

committee report in appendix 1. The drainage officer’s comments are given 
below.

Page 7

Agenda Item 7

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V1820/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

No objection. 
The applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated that infiltration is feasible by way 
of submitting a revised hydraulic calculation sheet. To elaborate further:

 The maximum half emptying of a soakaway in accordance with Part H of 
the Building Regulations and any other legislative or non – statutory 
guidance is 24hrs. The half emptying of this proposed infiltration device 
(filter drain) is 12.87hrs.

 Part H of the Building Regulations unfortunately specify that individual 
surface water drainage systems must accommodate a 1 in 10 year 
storm. However, due to non-statutory guidance available nationally and 
furthermore recognised, we are able to get the minimum 1 in 30 year 
storm. This infiltration device has been designed to accommodate a 1 in 
30 year storm + 40% CC (climate change).

 Finally, if there are grievances with the close proximity of the existing 
stone wall, then Building Control should be contacted. However, as this 
is a spread load device i.e permeable paving, as opposed to a point load 
device i.e singular soakaway, then there should be no issues. This can 
however be clarified by Building Control.

3.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
3.1 See the previous report in appendix 1.

4.0 MAIN ISSUES
4.1 The assessment of the main issues are as set out in the report in appendix 1.

An update on the drainage issues is presented below.

4.2 Drainage
The drainage officer has confirmed that the proposed drainage infiltration is 
more than adequate and exceeds the relevant drainage legislation. The site is 
not situated in flood zones 2 or 3. Therefore fluvial flooding is unlikely to occur 
at the site. 

4.3 The drainage officer has raised no objection, confirming that the applicant has 
successfully demonstrated that infiltration is feasible via a hydraulic calculation 
sheet. This infiltration device has been designed to accommodate a 1 in 30 
year storm + 40% for climate change which accords with legislation.

4.4 It is therefore considered that the development would not affect the quality of 
water resources or create flooding at the development site or elsewhere. The 
development therefore complies with Policy DC12 of the Vale of White Horse 
Local Plan Saved Policies 2011, and Policy CP42 of the Vale of White Horse 
Local Plan 2031, Part 1.

5.0 CONCLUSION
5.1 Following receipt of the amended drainage plans and details, and in light of the

drainage officer’s consultation response, officers consider the proposal to be 
acceptable.

Page 8



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

5.2 The application has been assessed on its merits, against the requirements of
the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1, saved policies of the adopted Local Plan 
2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. Regard has been given to 
the draft Local Plan 2031, Part 2 but as this is yet to be adopted, it’s policies 
hold limited weight.

5.3 The application will provide an economic and social role via the additional 
residents who will use local services, and business. In terms of the 
environmental role, limited harm has been identified with respect to the impact 
on the surrounding character and appearance of the area and the surrounding 
listed buildings.

5.4 There are no technical objections to the proposal, subject to appropriate 
conditions. The council’s drainage engineer has confirmed the proposal is 
acceptable from a drainage perspective.

5.5 Overall in the planning balance, the benefits of the scheme are considered to 
outweigh the limited harm that has been identified. As such, the application is 
recommended for approval.

The following planning policies have been taken into account:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 
the determination of any planning application must be made in accordance with 
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The 
statutory Development Plan comprises;

- The Local Plan 2031 Part 1
- The Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies
- The Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2031
- Neighbourhood Plans for; Drayton, Coxwell, Blewbury, Faringdon, 
           Radley, Great Coxwell, and Longworth.

Other material considerations include government guidance, in particular:

- The National Planning Policy Framework (2018) (NPPF)
- The National Planning Policy Guidance (March 2014) (NPPG)
- Vale of White Horse Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document 
            (SPD) (March 2015)
- Vale of White Horse Updated Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) 
           (December 2016)
- Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and 
            Additional Sites
- Building for Life 12

Other Relevant Legislation

- Human Rights Act 1998
- The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into  
           account in the processing of the application and the preparation of this  

Page 9



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

           report.
- Equality Act 2010
- In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its 
           equalities obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the   
           Equality Act 2010.

The Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies which are relevant to 
the proposed development consist of:

CP01  - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CP03  - Settlement Hierarchy
CP04  - Meeting Our Housing Needs
CP07  - Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services 
CP20  - Spatial Strategy for Western Vale Sub-Area
CP33  - Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility 
CP35  - Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking 
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP39  - The Historic Environment
CP46  - Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity

The Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies which are relevant to 
the proposed development consist of:

DC5  - Access
DC6  -  Landscaping
DC7  - Waste Collection and Recycling
DC9  - The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses 
DC12 - Water Quality and Resources

The Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and Additional Sites complements 
the Part 1 plan and sets out policies and locations for housing for the Vale's 
proportion of Oxford's housing need up to 2031, which cannot be met within the 
City boundaries. It contains policies for the part of Didcot Garden Town that lies 
within the Vale of White Horse District, and detailed development management 
policies to complement the Local Plan 2031 Part 1, which replace the saved 
policies of the Local Plan 2011.  It also allocates additional development sites 
for housing.

Paragraph 48 of the NPPF states that decision-takers may give weight (unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise) to relevant policies in emerging 
plans according to:
• The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the 
           preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);
• The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies 
          (the less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight 
           that may be given); and
• The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan 
           to the policies in the Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging  
           plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may   
           be given).

Page 10



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

The Vale of White Horse District Council submitted the Local Plan 2031 Part 2: 
Detailed Policies and Additional Sites to the Secretary of State on Friday 23 
February 2018 for independent examination. The draft Local Plan 2031 Part 2 is 
currently under examination.

Overall, taking into account the current stage of preparation, the emerging Local 
Plan 2031, Part 2 now attracts limited weight.

The Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and 
Additional Sites policies which are relevant to the proposed development consist 
of:

CP4a – Meeting our housing needs
CP20a – Housing supply for Western Vale sub-area 
DP16 – Access
DP23 – Impact of development on amenity
DP28 – Waste collection and recycling
DP36 – Heritage assetsVale of White Horse District Council – «REPORT_NAME» – «REPORT_DATE»

Case officer: Andy Heron
Email: andy.heron@southandvale.gov.uk
Contact No.: 01235 422600

Page 11



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 31 October 2018 

 1

 
 

 APPLICATION NO. P18/V1820/FUL 

 SITE Land south of Red Gables Kings Lane 
Faringdon, SN7 7SS

 PARISH LONGCOT
 PROPOSAL Part retrospective: Proposed 

replacement dwelling
 WARD MEMBER(S) Simon Howell 

Elaine Ware
 APPLICANT Mr Martin Leach 
 OFFICER Andy Heron
 
 
 RECOMMENDATION 
 It is recommended that planning permission is granted, subject to the 

following conditions: 
 

 Standard 
1. Time limit - full application.  
2. Approved plans list. 
 
Prior to occupation 
3. Boundary details provided in accordance with plans. 
 
Compliance 
4. Materials in accordance with plans. 
5. Permitted development restriction – roof alterations. 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This application is referred to planning committee following a call-in request 

from one of the local members, Councillor Elaine Ware. Councillor Ware has 
asked that the application be referred to committee in view of the many 
concerns raised and the history of the site. 
 

1.2 The site is situated in the settlement of Longcot. Longcot is a smaller village 
within the Western Vale sub-area. A site location plan is provided overleaf: 
 

 
 

 

Page 12



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 31 October 2018 

 2

 
 
 

1.3 The application follows recent planning approval (P18/V0573/FUL) for the 
partial demolition of a former stables and extension and conversion into a 
dwelling. This part retrospective application has been submitted following the 
unlawful demolition of the entire property. 
 

1.4 The site now consists of a cleared site that is surrounded by residential 
dwellings. The former stables have been replaced with the foundations of a 
new dwelling. The site is situated to the north-west of a grade II listed building. 
 

1.5 A small barn is located to the south-eastern area of the site. Vehicle access is 
situated to the north-west via Fernham Road. 
 

1.6 Planning permission is sought for a part retrospective dwelling which will 
resemble the previously approved application (P18/V0573/FUL) for the partial 
demolition of the former stables, extension and conversion to a dwelling. The 
development will increase the width of the original building by 7.66 metres, the 
depth will also increase by 6.17 metres to incorporate a dual pitched roof. The 
height of the dwelling will also be 1.15 metres higher than the original building. 
It is important to note that the building will be the exact size as the previously 
permitted dwelling approved under application P18/V0573/FUL. 
 

1.7 The development is proposed to be constructed of materials to match the 
original dwelling. Vehicle access will remain the same with on-site car parking 
for three vehicles. Extracts from the application plans are attached at 
Appendix 1. 

 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 A summary of the responses received is set out below. Comments made can 

be viewed in full online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk. 
 

  
 

Page 13



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 31 October 2018 

 3

 
Longcot Parish 
Council 

Objection. This plot has been put to 
planning many times over many years. 
The Parish Council has always worked 
hard to make sure that the outcome of all 
planning decisions were the best 
outcome for ensuring the plot was 
developed in a manor in keeping with 
being one of Longcot’s old heritage sites, 
in the curtilage of more than one Grade II 
listed building and also to comply with the 
requirement of houses required in a 
designated small village. 
 
The site is in a unique situation as it sits 
within a zone that is prone to flooding, 
caused by heavy rain on Longcot clay. 
The site has had water moving through it 
on 3 occasions within 36 years according 
to the flood group’s knowledge. Of course 
it was not a dwelling then so the houses 
around it on the downhill side were all 
flooded by the water passing over it and 
across it, so any building that takes away 
area of absorption will increase the risk of 
flooding to neighbouring properties quite 
dramatically. Longcot was a village with 
many ponds and trees. This site originally 
had 2 ponds on it, which is why water will 
find its way to the site and as it now has 
no ponds it needs to plan for such. The 
Parish Council does have a flood policy in 
place and requires detailed drainage 
plans, this is an area where this is of 
great importance, and no such plans 
have been submitted. 
 
This proposal is much larger than the 
previously approved application which the 
Parish Council cannot accept as it is over 
development of this plot. The site had 
planning permission for a partial 
demolition of the old heritage building. It 
had to be halted because the developer 
did a total demolition and so the process 
appears to be that a new planning 
application had to be 
submitted. The Parish Council strongly 
feels that a legal precedent could be set if 
any future developer did not like the 

Page 14



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 31 October 2018 

 4

terms of permitted planning consent, 
especially involving heritage buildings, by 
ignoring totally the conditions of planning 
permission to achieve a bigger footprint 
with no heritage details required etc. 
Hence the Parish Council strongly feels 
that the original planning footprint should 
be adhered to. 
 
The Design and Access statement of this 
application suggests 'demolition' 
- i.e. to dismantle the existing stable 
structure, as the stable has been totally 
demolished this application should be 
facing the position it is in now and how it 
is going to ensure that the building 
process will deliver what it said it was 
going to. The Design and Access 
statement 
also states that the Vales Legal 
Department confirmed that Barn A was 
not curtilage listed in February 2018, 
however, Longcot Parish Council would 
like to suggest that as we are a 
designated small village and take our old 
buildings very seriously we very much 
care what the look of any building is when 
close to our village’s grade 2 listed 
buildings. 

Oxfordshire County 
Council – Highways 
liaison officer 
 

No objection. 

Conservation No objection. 

Drainage No objection. The applicant has 
successfully demonstrated that infiltration 
is feasible via a hydraulic calculation 
sheet. This infiltration device has been 
designed to accommodate a 1 in 30 year 
storm +40% CC which accords with 
legislation. 

Waste management 
officer 

No objection 

Archaeologist No objection. 

Contaminated land 
 

No objection. 

Page 15



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 31 October 2018 

 5

Neighbours – 3 letters 
of objection received. 
The grounds for 
objection concern can 
be summarised as: 

 drainage implications. 
 discrepancies in supporting 

documents. 
 no party wall agreement has been 

sought. 
 impact on neighbouring amenity. 
 impact on setting of grade II listed 

building. 
 flooding implications.

 
 
 

 
3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 P18/V0573/FUL - Approved (23/05/2018) 

The partial demolition of a former stables (Barn A) and proposed extension and 
conversion into a dwelling. 
related to P18/V0101/FUL 
 
P18/V0101/FUL - Other Outcome (26/02/2018) 
Conversion of stable block into a dwelling 
related to P18/V0573/FUL 
 
P16/V0507/FUL - Approved (03/05/2016) 
Proposal to extend and convert the former stables into a four bedroom 
dwelling. 
 
P16/V0475/LB - Approved (03/05/2016) 
Proposal to extend and convert the former stables into a four bedroom 
dwelling. 
 
P15/V0861/DIS - Approved (16/09/2015) 
Discharge of conditions 3 (materials), 4 (schedule), 5 (joinery) and 6 (flue) of 
listed building consent P14/V1816/LB, and conditions 3 and 6 of planning 
permission P14/V1745/FUL. 
 
Conversion of existing stables into a four bedroom dwelling and conversion of 
existing animal shelter into a garage/workshop. 
 
(Additional drainage information received 10 September 2015) 
 
P14/V1816/LB - Approved (13/11/2014) 
Conversion of existing stables into a four bedroom dwelling and conversion of 
existing animal shelter into a garage/workshop.  (Re-submission of withdrawn 
application P14/V1116/FUL)(as amended by drawings 1151-12, 1151-S-
01RevA and 1551-S-02RevA and 1551-S-03Rev A). 
 
P14/V1745/FUL - Approved (13/11/2014) 
Conversion of existing stables into a four bedroom dwelling and conversion of 
existing animal shelter into a garage/workshop.  (Re-submission of withdrawn 

Page 16



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 31 October 2018 

 6

application P14/V1116/FUL)(as amended by drawings 1151-12, 1151-S-
01RevA and 1551-S-02RevA and 1151-S-03RevA). 
 
P14/V1342/LB - Other Outcome (28/07/2014) 
Demolition of of outbuilding and retention of wall adjoined to Downs Cottage for 
the erection of a 4 bed dwelling and a 2 bed dwelling. (as amended by D&A 
statement received 23 June 2014.) 
 
P14/V1116/FUL - Other Outcome (28/07/2014) 
Demolition of existing agricultural buildings.  Erection of a 4-bedroom dwelling 
and a 2-bedroom dwelling. 
 
P13/V2450/FUL - Other Outcome (20/12/2013) 
Erection of four bed dwelling with separate detached two bed annex and 
additional double garage. 
 
P12/V0191/LB - Approved (27/03/2012) 
Following subsidence damage repairs are proposed 
 
P06/V1476 - Approved (11/01/2007) 
Demolition of redundant agricultural building. Erection of a single storey 
detached dwelling. 
 

 
4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 The application has been considered under the provisions of the Town and 

Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017. The 
scale of the proposal is below relevant thresholds and the locality has no 
recognised specific environmental sensitivity. Therefore, an Environmental 
Statement is not required. 

 
5.0 MAIN ISSUES 
 The main considerations in determining this application are; 

 
- Principle of development 
- Design and the impact on the character and appearance of the area 
-          Impact on neighbouring amenity 
-          Highway safety 
-          Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

 
5.1 Principle of development 

The settlement hierarchy set out in Core Policy 3 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 
identifies Longcot as a smaller village within the Western Vale sub-area. 
Smaller villages have a low level of services and facilities. Development should 
be modest and proportionate in scale and primarily be to meet local needs. 
Core Policy 4 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 states that there is a presumption 
in favour of sustainable development within the existing built area of market 
towns, local service centres and larger villages. Limited infill development may 
be appropriate within the existing built areas of smaller villages where they are 
in keeping with local character and are proportionate in scale. 

Page 17



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 31 October 2018 

 7

 
5.2 The NPPF is clear that local planning authorities should look to significantly 

boost the supply of housing in line with the principles of sustainable 
development. Core Policy 4 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 sets out the  
Council’s approach to delivering new homes and retaining the housing stock. 
New homes will be located in accordance with the settlement hierarchy outlined 
in Core Policy CP3. 
 

5.3 The development is located in the settlement of Longcot within an area that 
benefits from a range of services. It would provide an additional dwelling unit in 
the Vale, meeting the Council’s requirement for the delivery of new homes. 
 

5.4 In view of the above the principle of development is therefore acceptable 
providing it accords with other relevant development plan policies. 
 

5.5 Design and impact on the character an appearance of the area  
The NPPF is clear that good design is indivisible from good planning, it 
attaches great importance to the design of the built environment. Good design 
is a key aspect of sustainable development and should contribute positively to 
making places better for people. It emphasises the importance to plan 
positively for the achievement of high quality and inclusive design for all 
development, including individual buildings. 
 

5.6 The NPPF also adds that the visual appearance and the architecture of 
individual buildings are very important factors, securing high quality and 
inclusive design goes beyond aesthetic considerations. Great weight should be 
given to outstanding or innovative designs which raise the standard of design 
more generally in the area. Permission should be refused for development of 
poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the 
character and quality of an area and the way it functions. 
 

5.7 Core Policy 37 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 states that 
new development must demonstrate high quality and sustainable design that 
relates not only to the appearance of a development, but the way in which it 
functions. 
 

5.8 Concerns have been raised stating that the barn is curtilage listed and that the 
development would create a harmful impact on an important heritage asset. 
Officers have obtained legal advice on this. The legal view is that the original 
building was not curtilage listed as the site was split and sold off in 1965 before 
the listing of Ivy Farmhouse in 1983 (listing 1048782). Officers therefore 
considered the building was a non-designated heritage asset. Policy DP36 of 
the Vale of White Horse Draft Local Plan 2031, Part 2 states that proposals for 
new development that may affect heritage assets must demonstrate that they 
conserve and enhance the special interest or significance of the heritage asset 
and its setting. 
 

5.9 It is disappointing that a non-heritage asset has been demolished. 
Nevertheless, the design and overall appearance of the dwelling will fit with the 
general scale and features of the surrounding area. The building is designed to 

Page 18



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 31 October 2018 

 8

replicate the previous approval (P18/V0573/FUL) and will be built to the same 
size and of the same materials as the previous planning consent. Furthermore, 
the overall appearance is proposed to conserve the setting of the adjacent 
grade II listed buildings to the south-east. There will be adequate amenity 
space, parking and privacy for the occupants. 
 

5.10 In view of the above the design and appearance of the proposed development 
is in compliance with the advice contained within the NPPF, and CP37 and 
CP39 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1, and Policy DP36 of 
the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2. 
 

5.11 Residential amenity 
Core Policy 37 of the Vale Local Plan 2031 Part 1, DC9 of the Vale of White 
Horse Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies, and DP23 of the Draft Vale of White 
Horse Local Plan 2031, Part 2 are of importance with regard to the potential 
impact upon neighbouring amenity. Policy DC9 states that development will not 
be permitted if it would unacceptably harm the amenities of neighbouring 
properties and the wider environment. 
 

5.12 The impact upon neighbouring amenity will be minimal as the dwelling will be 
sufficiently distanced away from neighbouring dwellings. Furthermore, the 
scale of development is not considered to create a harmful impact towards 
neighbouring occupants. It is therefore considered that the criteria contained 
within Core Policy 37 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and DC9 of the Local Plan 
2011 Saved Policies, and DP23 of the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 
2031 Part 2 will be adhered to. 
 

5.13 Drainage 
The site is not situated in flood zones 2 or 3. Therefore fluvial flooding is 
unlikely to occur at the site. The drainage officer has raised no objection, 
confirming that the applicant has successfully demonstrated that infiltration is 
feasible via a hydraulic calculation sheet. This infiltration device has been 
designed to accommodate a 1 in 30 year storm + 40% CC which accords with 
legislation. 
 

5.14 It is therefore considered that the development would not affect the quality of 
water resources or create flooding at the development site or elsewhere. The 
development therefore complies with Policy DC12 of the Vale of White Horse 
Local Plan Saved Policies 2011, and Policy CP42 of the Vale of White Horse 
Local Plan 2031, Part 1. 
 

5.15 Other matters 
Neighbouring objectors are concerned that there are discrepancies in the 
supporting information. Officers are satisfied that sufficient information has 
been submitted in this instance. Other objections have raised concerns with the 
impact of a stone party wall. This is not a material planning consideration, if a 
party wall is damaged during construction this would fall under the Party Wall 
Act which is a matter outside of planning legislation. 
 

5.16 To preserve neighbouring amenity and the character and appearance of the 

Page 19



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 31 October 2018 

 9

surrounding area a condition is recommended to remove permitted 
development rights for additions or alterations of the roof of the dwelling. This 
will prevent an overdeveloped appearance and allow officers to carefully 
monitor any potential impact on the setting of the nearby grade II listed 
buildings. 
 

5.17 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
Policy CP7 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031, Part 1 states that the 
Council will work with infrastructure providers and stakeholders to identify 
requirements for infrastructure provision and services for new development and 
will seek to co-ordinate infrastructure delivery. The Council has implemented its 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) as from 1st November 2017. Planning 
applications which are decided after 1st November 2017 may be liable to pay 
the levy. 
 

5.18 The proposed new build in terms of the gross internal floor space area (GIA) as 
defined by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) is 217m2. Under 
the Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule adopted by Vale of 
White Horse Council and the government Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations, new dwellings and residential development of 100m2 or more will 
be liable to pay the Community Infrastructure Levy. In this instance the 
application is CIL liable with a total CIL liability cost of £28,498.32. 
 

5.19 Sustainable development 
When considering development proposals, the Council is required to take a 
positive approach that reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development contained in the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

5.20 The National Planning Policy Framework places a strong emphasis on 
sustainable development. All planning applications must result in sustainable 
development with consideration being given to economic, social and 
environmental sustainability aspects of the proposal. The development will 
have a minimal impact upon the local services which operate in Longcot. The 
environmental considerations have been assessed in terms of amenity, and 
impact on the character and appearance of the area and for the reasons given 
above are considered acceptable. Social considerations overlap those of 
environmental in terms of amenity. As these have been found acceptable the 
development is considered to constitute sustainable development. 

 
6.0 CONCLUSION 
6.1 The application has been assessed on its merits, against the requirements of 

the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1, saved policies of the adopted Local Plan 
2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. Regard has been given to 
the draft Local Plan 2031, Part 2 but as this is yet to be adopted, it’s policies 
hold limited weight. 
 

6.2 The application will provide an economic and social role via the additional 
residents who will use local services, and business. 
 

6.3 In terms of the environmental role, limited harm has been identified with respect 

Page 20



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 31 October 2018 

 10

to the impact on the surrounding character and appearance of the area and the 
surrounding listed buildings. 
 

6.4 There are no technical objections to the proposal, subject to appropriate 
conditions. 
 

6.5 Overall in the planning balance, the benefits of the scheme are considered to 
outweigh the limited harm that has been identified. As such, the application is 
recommended for approval.

 
 The following planning policies have been taken into account: 

 
 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 

the determination of any planning application must be made in accordance with 
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The 
statutory Development Plan comprises; 
 
- The Local Plan 2031 Part 1 
- The Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies 
- The Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2031 
- Neighbourhood Plans for; Drayton, Coxwell, Blewbury, Faringdon,  
           Radley, Great Coxwell, and Longworth. 
 

 Other material considerations include government guidance, in particular: 
 
- The National Planning Policy Framework (2018) (NPPF) 
- The National Planning Policy Guidance (March 2014) (NPPG) 
- Vale of White Horse Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document  
            (SPD) (March 2015) 
- Vale of White Horse Updated Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP)  
           (December 2016) 
- Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and  
            Additional Sites 
- Building for Life 12 
 

 Other Relevant Legislation 
 
- Human Rights Act 1998 
- The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into   
           account in the processing of the application and the preparation of this   
           report. 
- Equality Act 2010 
- In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its  
           equalities obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the    
           Equality Act 2010. 
 

 The Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies which are relevant to 
the proposed development consist of: 
 
CP01  - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development CP03  - Settlement 

Page 21



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 31 October 2018 

 11

Hierarchy 
CP04  - Meeting Our Housing Needs 
CP07  - Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services CP20  - Spatial 
Strategy for Western Vale Sub-Area 
CP33  - Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility CP35  - Promoting 
Public Transport, Cycling and Walking CP37  -  Design and Local 
Distinctiveness 
CP39  - The Historic Environment 
CP46  - Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity 
 

 The Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies which are relevant to 
the proposed development consist of: 
 
DC5  - Access 
DC6  -  Landscaping 
DC7  - Waste Collection and Recycling 
DC9  - The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses DC12 - Water Quality 
and Resources 
 

 The Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and Additional Sites complements 
the Part 1 plan and sets out policies and locations for housing for the Vale's 
proportion of Oxford's housing need up to 2031, which cannot be met within the 
City boundaries. It contains policies for the part of Didcot Garden Town that lies 
within the Vale of White Horse District, and detailed development management 
policies to complement the Local Plan 2031 Part 1, which replace the saved 
policies of the Local Plan 2011.  It also allocates additional development sites 
for housing. 
 

 Paragraph 48 of the NPPF states that decision-takers may give weight (unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise) to relevant policies in emerging 
plans according to: 
• The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the  
           preparation, the greater the weight that may be given); 
• The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies  
          (the less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight  
           that may be given); and 
• The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan  
           to the policies in the Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging   
           plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may    
           be given). 
 

 The Vale of White Horse District Council submitted the Local Plan 2031 Part 2: 
Detailed Policies and Additional Sites to the Secretary of State on Friday 23 
February 2018 for independent examination. The draft Local Plan 2031 Part 2 is 
currently under examination. 
 

 Overall, taking into account the current stage of preparation, the emerging Local 
Plan 2031, Part 2 now attracts limited weight. 
 

 The Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and 

Page 22



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 31 October 2018 

 12

Additional Sites policies which are relevant to the proposed development consist 
of: 
 
CP4a – Meeting our housing needs 
CP20a – Housing supply for Western Vale sub-area DP16 – Access 
DP23 – Impact of development on amenity DP28 - Waste collection 
and recycling 
DP 36 –  Heritage assets 
 

Case officer:  Andy Heron 
Email: andy.heron@southandvale.gov.uk 
Contact No.: 01235 422600 

Page 23



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 31 October 2018 Pl.1

Minutes
of a meeting of the
Planning Committee
held on Wednesday, 31 October 2018 at 
6.30 pm
in the The Ridgeway, The Beacon, Portway, 
Wantage, OX12 9BY

Open to the public, including the press

Present: 

Members: Councillors Sandy Lovatt (Chairman), Janet Shelley (Vice-Chairman), 
Stuart Davenport, Robert Hall, Jenny Hannaby, Anthony Hayward, Bob Johnston, 
Ben Mabbett and Helen Pighills (In place of Catherine Webber)

Officers: Martin Deans, Emily Hamerton, Andy Heron and Ron Schrieber

Also present: Councillor Ed Blagrove

Pl.72 Chairman's announcements 

The chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting, outlined the procedure to be followed, 
and advised on emergency evacuation arrangements.

Pl.73 Apologies for absence 

Councillor Catherine Webber had tendered her apologies. Councillor Helen Pighills 
substituted for her.

Pl.74 Minutes 

RESOLVED: to adopt the minutes of the committee meetings held on 26 September and 3 
October 2018 as correct records and agree that the chairman sign them as such.

As additional information in connection with Minute 70 of the meeting held on 3 October 
2018, P18/V0492/FUL – The Old Gaol, Bridge Street, Abingdon, the committee was 
informed that the outstanding S106 payment of £180,000 had been made in full.  

Pl.75 Declarations of interest 

None.

Pl.76 Urgent business 

None.

Appendix 1

Page 24



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 31 October 2018 Pl.2

Pl.77 Public participation 

The list showing members of the public who had registered to speak was tabled at the 
meeting.

Pl.78 P18/V0359/FUL - Parklands School, Besselsleigh, Appleton, Oxford 

Anthony Hayward, the local ward councillor, stepped down from the committee and took 
no part in the debate or voting for this item.

The committee considered application P18/V0359/FUL for the refurbishment and 
conversion of the existing Manor House into 8 apartments; the demolition of all other 
existing outbuildings and the extension to the Manor House; the erection of 36 new 
dwellings comprising 9 apartments within the extension to the Manor House and 27 
houses within the grounds of the site; and retention of the existing site access, plus new 
associated parking and landscaping at Parklands School, Besselsleigh, Appleton, Oxford.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Officer update: A S106 financial contribution for off-site affordable housing of £286,769 
had been agreed.

Jane Cranston, a representative of Besselsleigh Parish Meeting, spoke objecting to the 
application.  

Mark Bayliss, representing some local residents, spoke objecting to the application.

Alison Knight and Richard Barter, the applicant’s agents, spoke in support of the 
application.

Anthony Hayward, the local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the application.

In view of the importance of improving the access from the site to the A420, members 
suggested that the highway works off site should be secured prior to commencement 
rather than prior to occupation.  An additional condition regarding slab levels was also 
suggested. 

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application, subject to amended 
conditions, was declared carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to authorise the head of planning to grant planning permission for application 
P18/V0359/FUL subject to the completion of section 106 obligations and highway works, 
and subject to the following conditions:

Standard
1. Commencement three years - full planning permission.
2. Approved plans.

Prior to commencement
3. Contaminated land.

Page 25



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 31 October 2018 Pl.3

4. Piling methodology.
5. Ecology licenses.
6. Tree protection.
7. Details of access and off-site works to be submitted.

Prior to occupation
8. Materials as specified.
9. Biodiversity enhancement in accordance with details.
10. Surface water drainage in accordance with details.
11. Foul drainage in accordance with details.
12. Landscaping and tree species details.
13. Tree methodology statement.
14. Details of external lighting.
15. Landscaping implementation and management plan.
16. Boundary treatments.
17. Parking in accordance with plans.
18. Residents’ travel information packs.
19. Noise mitigation in accordance with details.
20. Slab levels in accordance with details.

Pl.79 P18/V1483/FUL - 3 Sandford Lane, Kennington, Oxford, OX1 5RW 

Bob Johnston, one of the local ward councillors, stepped down from the committee and 
took no part in the debate or voting for this item.

The committee considered application P18/V1483/FUL for the demolition of the existing 
bungalow and the erection of 2 x 1 bed and 3 x 2 bed apartments, associated off street 
parking, private amenity space, refuse and cycle storage at 3 Sandford Lane, Kennington, 
Oxford.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Martin Feather, a representative of Kennington Parish Council, spoke objecting to the 
application. 

Janine Humphreys, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application.

Terry Winter, the applicant, spoke in support of the application.

Ed Blagrove and Bob Johston, the local ward councillors, spoke objecting to the 
application.

A previous application for redevelopment of the site had been refused and an appeal 
against this decision had been dismissed.  Whilst the new proposal sought to address the 
reasons for refusal, members expressed the view that the changes were not sufficient to 
justify approval.

Contrary to the officer recommendation, a motion to refuse the application was declared 
carried on being put to the vote.
 

Page 26



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 31 October 2018 Pl.4

RESOLVED: to refuse planning permission for application P18/V1483/FUL, for the 
following reasons:

1. Having regard to the bulk, width and height of the proposed building compared to the 
surrounding properties, the development would appear dominant and overbearing 
within the street scene which would be harmful and out of keeping with the character 
of the area. This would be contrary to policy CP37 of the adopted Local Plan, advice 
set out in the Vale of White Horse Design Guide and advice set out in the NPPF.

2. Having regard to the amount of hardstanding to the front of the property to meet the 
required parking, in an elevated position within the street scene, this development 
would appear dominant and out of character with the surrounding area, contrary to 
policies CP37 and DC6 of the adopted Local Plan, advice within the Vale of White 
Horse Design Guide and advice set out in the NPPF.

Pl.80 P18/V1820/FUL - Land south of Red Gables, Longcot 

The committee considered application P18/V1820/FUL for a part retrospective proposed 
replacement dwelling on land south of Red Gables, Longcot.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Councillor Elaine Ware, one of the local ward councillors, had submitted a statement, 
objecting to the application.

Nick Boyd, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application.  

Heloise Goodley, the applicant, spoke in support of the application.

The planning officer advised the committee that there appeared to be a discrepancy 
between the drainage proposals detailed in the planning application and those described 
by the applicant. Accordingly, a motion to defer consideration of the application, pending a 
site visit and clarification of the drainage strategy, was declared carried on being put to the 
vote.

RESOLVED: to defer consideration of application P18/V1820/FUL, pending a site visit and 
clarification of drainage information.

Pl.81 P17/V2711/FUL - Heritage, 63A Oxford Road, Abingdon 

Helen Pighills, one of the local ward councillors, stepped down from the committee and 
took no part in the debate or voting for this item.

The committee considered application P17/V2711/FUL for a change of use from a C3 
dwelling house to a 7 bed HMO (sui generis) at Heritage, 63A Oxford Road, Abingdon.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Page 27



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 31 October 2018 Pl.5

Officer updates:
 Abingdon Town Council was now satisfied with the car parking provision and 

withdrawn its objection.
 The forestry officer had no objection subject to an additional condition requiring a 

tree protection plan.

Helen Pighills, one of the local ward councillors, spoke about the application.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application, subject to an additional 
condition was declared carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P17/V2711/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions:

Standard
1. Time limit – full application.
2. Approved plans.

Prior to commencement
3. Tree protection

Prior to occupation
4. Car parking.
5. Visibility splays

The meeting closed at 8.55 pm

Page 28



Appendix 2

Page 29



Page 30



P
age 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

APPLICATION NO. P18/V2470/FUL
SITE Land off Sheepstead Road Marcham Abingdon
PARISH MARCHAM
PROPOSAL Variation of condition 2 - approved plans on 

application ref. P16/V3224/FUL

Erection of 47 dwellings with associated means 
of access, car parking, footpath links, amenity 
space and landscaping. As amended by plans 
and information received 28 March 2017. As 
amended by plans received 12 May 2017.

WARD MEMBER(S) Catherine Webber
APPLICANT Mactaggart & Mickel Homes England Limited
OFFICER Stuart Walker

RECOMMENDATION
To delegate authority to grant planning permission to the Head of 
Planning subject to: 

I. Completion of a deed of variation to the S106 agreement to secure 
contributions towards local infrastructure and affordable housing; 
and

II. The following conditions:

1. Time limit – development to begin no later than 11 August 2020.
2. Approved plans.
3. Materials (Samples).
4. Construction traffic management plan.
5. Parking.
6. New estate roads.
7. Footpath link north details (to Cow Lane).
8. Footpath link south details (to Howard Cornish Road).
9. Footpath links prior to occupation.
10.Travel information pack.
11.Foul drainage strategy.
12.Sustainable drainage scheme.
13.No occupation until drainage scheme implementation.
14.Tree protection.
15.Landscaping scheme.
16.Landscape maintenance.
17.Ecology mitigation measures.
18.Boundary details.
19.Bicycle parking and bin storage.
20.External charging points for electric vehicles - dwellings with 

garages.
21.Garage accommodation.
22.Hours of operation - construction/demolition sites.

Page 35

Agenda Item 8

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V2470/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

Informative - Planning obligation.

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application comes to committee as Marcham Parish Council raise 

objections to the proposal.

1.2 The application seeks to vary condition 2 of application P16/V3224/FUL, 
granted in August 2017 for 47 dwellings.    The proposal seeks minor material 
amendments to the approved plans as the applicant is seeking to construct 
their own house types on the site.

1.3 The site is located on the northern edge of Marcham and extends to 
approximately 2.6 hectares (6.4 acres). It is currently used for livestock 
grazing and contains a couple of small sheds/outbuildings that would be 
demolished as part of the proposal. The site is broadly rectangular and there 
are significant groups of mature trees throughout the site, particularly along 
the site boundaries. A site location plan is below:

1.4 The site’s western boundary is adjoined by Sheepstead Road and a recent 
development of 43 dwellings (Harding Way) lies to the south.  To the north 
there are allotments and public open space owned by the Parish Council, 
beyond this is a public right of way known as “Cow Lane”. A path used as a 
permissive right of way runs along the site’s eastern boundary and separates 
the site from adjacent open countryside.

Page 36



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

1.5 The layout of the proposed development is designed in response to the 
surrounding land uses and landscape. It comprises a mixture of detached, 
semi-detached and terraced dwellings and a large area of public open space 
has been created at the centre of the site. Vehicular access to the 
development is proposed via Harding Way.

1.6 The proposed dwellings are two storeys in height with a vernacular typology / 
traditional design.  The proposal for 47 dwellings would result in a density of 
just under 19 dwellings per hectare. A copy of the layout plan is attached at 
Appendix 1.  A copy of the approved proposal is attached at Appendix 2 for 
comparison.

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 Marcham 

Parish Council
Objection:

 Materials should be in keeping with development to 
south (brick and render) – we object to the use of 
black facias, canopies and bargeboards.

 The development to the south suffers from 
inadequate parking and vehicles are left on the road. 
There is a considerable shortage in visitor parking.  
The parish asks that there is an increase in spaces 
on this application site to compensate.  

 Electric charging points should be provided at each 
property.

 The footpath in the SE corner has changed from the 
approved plans, emerging onto a car parking area.  
The parish does not support shared surfaces and 
wishes to see a separate path.  In addition, the path 
should be constructed southwards to connect to the 
path linking through to Howard Cornish Road.

 The drawings indicate a path extension to Cow Lane 
from Sheepstead Road.  This needs to be completed.

 The developer should also complete or provide 
funding to complete the footway link in North Street 
between the Gap and Howard Cornish Road.

 Drainage and sewage difficulties remain an issue 
within the village and the parish requires a full 
solution before development commences and seeks 
confirmation from Thames Water the system can 
accommodate the number of dwellings.

 The parish wish to see play equipment provided on 
the open space.

 The parish wish to see a construction management 
plan in place to control delivery vehicles.

Residents Two letters of objection have been received raising the 
following issues:

 There is no existing footpath in the SE corner for the 
new path to link to. The existing pedestrian gate has 

Page 37



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

been locked for years – there is no established 
access.  The plan also shows the path linking to the 
hammerhead which is private land, and the path will 
cross tree roots, leading to potential loss of trees 
(including a mature Norway Maple)

 Traffic movements / highway safety – why should 
existing residents have to change their parking habits 
to accommodate further development

 Harding Way is not adopted – permission to use it will 
be required and any damage caused by development 
made good

 The access junction needs to be widened, 
alternatively, the site should have its own separate 
access off Sheepstead Road

 Impact on sewage network
 Loss of privacy & security to Harding Way residents

Oxfordshire 
County Council 

No response.

Thames Water No response.

Drainage 
Engineer

No comment.

Housing 
Development 
Team

No response.

Countryside 
Officer

No objection.

Environmental 
Health – Air 
Quality

No objection.

Environmental 
Health –
Protection 
Team

No objection.

Environmental 
Health – 
Contaminated 
Land

No objection.

Tree Officer No objection.

Landscape 
Officer

No objection.

Natural 
England

No comment.

Waste Team No objection.

Urban Design 
Officer

No response.

Page 38



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 P16/V3224/FUL - Approved (11/08/2017)

Erection of 47 dwellings with associated means of access, car parking, footpath 
links, amenity space and landscaping.  As amended by plans and information 
received 28 March 2017.  As amended by plans received 12 May 2017.

P14/V2373/O - Approved (06/11/2015)
Outline application for erection of up to 37 dwellings with associated means of 
access, car parking, new footpath links, amenity space and landscaping (as 
amplified by information accompanying letter from agent dated 23 April 2015)

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
4.1 The site area is less than 5 hectares, fewer than 150 dwellings are proposed, 

and the site is not in a ‘sensitive area’ as defined by the regulations.  The 
proposal is not EIA development.

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
5.1 The key issues for consideration in this case are:

 The principle of development
 The principle of varying conditions
 Condition 2 – changes to approved drawings
 Affordable housing and mix
 Design and layout
 Residential amenity
 Landscape and visual impact
 Open space landscaping and trees
 Flood risk and drainage
 Traffic, parking and highway safety
 Air Quality
 Ecology and biodiversity
 Archaeology
 CIL & S106 contributions 

5.2 The principle of development
Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires 
applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  Section 
70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the local 
planning authority shall have regard to the provisions of the development plan, 
so far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

5.3 The Development Plan comprises the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan 
2031, Part 1 and saved policies of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011.

5.4 The approach to the principle of new residential development is defined by 
development plan policies CP3, CP4 and CP8.  The overall spatial strategy of 
the development plan is to direct development within the built-up area of 
market towns, local service centres and larger villages.

Page 39

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/V3224/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P14/V2373/O


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

5.5 Policy CP3 sets out the settlement hierarchy and identifies three sub-area 
strategies.  It confirms Marcham is a larger village within the Abingdon on 
Thames and Oxford Fringe Sub-Area.

5.6 Policy CP4, specifying the scale and location of housing, confirms development 
outside of the existing built area of these settlements will be permitted where it 
is allocated by the Local Plan or has been allocated within an adopted 
neighbourhood development plan or future parts of the local plan.  The policy 
also makes clear that development in open countryside will not be appropriate 
unless specifically supported by other relevant policies set out in the 
development plan or national policy.

5.7 Policy CP8 sets outs the spatial strategy for the Abingdon on Thames and 
Oxford Fringe Sub-Area.  It identifies the strategic housing site allocations for 
the area and confirms development within the Sub-Area should be in 
accordance with the settlement hierarchy of policy CP3.

5.8 The site is not allocated in the development plan and is not allocated in any 
emerging plan (Local Plan Part 2).  Furthermore, Marcham does not have a 
defined settlement boundary.  Whether a particular site is within the built-up 
area is a matter of judgement on an individual basis.  Officers consider the site 
is outside the existing built up area of the village and is open countryside for 
planning purposes.  Its development for housing is therefore in conflict with the 
development plan.

5.9 Notwithstanding this, the outline application for 37 dwellings (application ref. 
P14/V2373/O) approved in November 2015 and the full permission for 47 
dwellings (application ref. P16/V3224/FUL) granted in August 2017 are material 
to this application.

5.10 The 37 dwellings proposal was granted when the council could not 
demonstrate a 5year housing supply and justified the permission for 47 units as 
it was a realistic fall-back scheme that could be delivered at the time.  
Furthermore the 47 units have since been accounted for in the Council’s 
housing trajectory and remains an implementable proposal.

5.11 Had there been no recent planning history for housing on this site the 
development would not be acceptable. However, there is a realistic fall-back 
position with the implementation of these permissions, and this holds weight in 
the consideration of this S73 application. Provided the detailed implications of 
this revised scheme are reasonable, officers consider the development is 
acceptable and the principle has been established.

5.12 The principle of varying conditions
When planning permission is granted, development must take place in 
accordance with the permission and conditions attached to it, and with any 
associated legal agreements.  New issues may arise after planning permission 
has been granted, which require modification of the approved proposals, and 
under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 an application 
can be made to vary or remove conditions associated with a planning 

Page 40



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

permission.  One of the uses of a section 73 application is to seek a minor 
material amendment, where there is a relevant condition that can be varied.

5.13 Condition 2 – changes to the approved drawings
This condition agreed plans by which the development would be implemented.  
Following the sale of the site to the applicant, it is proposed to revise the 
approved design of the dwellings to their range of house types and make minor 
changes to the layout.

5.14 Affordable housing and housing mix
The application makes provision for 35% affordable housing which accords 
with policy CP24.  The proposed affordable housing mix remains unchanged 
from that required in the s106 agreement accompanying application no. 
P16/V3224/FUL as follows:

1 bed 2 beds 3 beds 4+ beds Total
Rent - 8 4 - 12
Shared 
Ownership

- 2 2 - 4

Total - 10 6 - 16

The distribution of the affordable units throughout the development is 
acceptable and the housing will be secured through a deed of variation to the 
S106 legal agreement.

5.15 Policy CP22 seeks to ensure the right mix of housing sizes, types and tenures 
are provided on all residential sites.  This should be in accordance with the 
Council’s strategic housing market assessment (SHMA) unless an alternative 
approach can be demonstrated to be more appropriate.  The following is 
proposed:

1 bed 2 beds 3 beds 4+ beds
SHMA  5.9% 21.7% 42.6% 29.8%
Expectation 2 6 13 9
Proposal 0 8 14 9

This market mix remains as previously approved and strikes the right balance 
for a mix of properties in the village to accord with policy CP22.

5.16 Design and Layout
The layout remains essentially as approved, based around a clearly defined 
network of informal streets.  Dwellings have been designed / positioned to front 
public space to provide a coherent environment for all users and a sense of 
enclosure.  There is a mix of on street parking, on plot parking and garaging 
and private amenity space and bin storage is also provided for each dwelling. 
Proposed dwellings in terms of heights, mass and external appearance are 
reflective of local architectural vernacular and are proportionate in scale to the 
existing village.  The proposed materials are acceptable.  Overall, the proposal 
is considered compliant with the adopted design guide and policy CP37.

Page 41



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

5.17 Residential Amenity
The application proposes an appropriate design response to existing dwellings.  
All new dwellings exceed the 21m distance between first floor habitable rooms 
set out in figure 5.59 of the design guide.  Issues of security are not considered 
to be so harmful to warrant refusal of the proposal.  The impact on existing 
neighbours is therefore acceptable and the proposal accords with saved policy 
DC9.

5.18 Landscape and Visual Impact
The site forms part of the Lowland Vale but is currently very well screened from 
the wider countryside with well-established tree planting on its boundaries. 
Therefore, the site is not readily visible in the wider Lowland Vale landscape 
and public views into the site are limited.  The retention of these tree belts will 
ensure the best possible integration of the development into the existing 
landscape and provide an attractive established setting.  It is therefore not 
considered that the proposal would have a harmful impact on the character of 
the area or affect the long open views across the Lowland Vale.  As such, there 
is no conflict with local plan saved policy NE9 or policy CP44.

5.19 Open Space, landscaping and trees
The application proposes an extensive area of open space.  In addition, each 
dwelling has private amenity space.  The proposal accords with saved policy 
H23.  

5.20 The application is supported with a landscape plan and the proposed layout 
has sufficient space to deliver a well landscaped scheme to accord with saved 
policy DC6, subject to further landscape details being secured through 
condition.

5.21 The tree officer raises no objection and confirms the changes proposed “do not 
appear to have a material arboricultural impact and the tree protection 
measures, agreed at length during the previously approved scheme, would 
seem to be achievable”.  Subject to previous tree protection and management 
conditions being re-imposed, the impact on trees is acceptable.

5.22 Flood Risk and drainage
The site is within flood zone 1 which is the zone least susceptible to flooding 
and preferred in flood risk terms for housing development.  The site is not at 
risk of river flooding.  A sustainable drainage scheme can be agreed and 
secured by planning condition thereby minimising the risks of flooding arising 
from the development. The drainage engineer has no objections to the 
proposal subject to further details being submitted (by condition).

5.23 Concern has been raised on foul sewer capacity.  Thames Water previously 
identified a network capacity issue with the foul sewer network and requested a 
Grampian condition to ensure that development does not commence until a 
detailed foul drainage strategy for on and off-site infrastructure (identifying 
exactly what is required, where and when) is approved and implemented 
before any discharge to the public system is accepted.  This remains a 
reasonable condition.

Page 42



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

5.24 Subject to the suggested drainage conditions, the proposal is acceptable in 
respect of flood risk and drainage and is compliant with local plan policy CP42.

5.25 Traffic, Parking and Highway Safety 
The proposed access connection point from Harding Way into the application 
site remains as approved. The level of traffic generation arising from the 
development will have no significant impact on the highway network and the 
Highways Authority raised no objections to the original proposal on highway 
safety or traffic generation grounds (subject to conditions, including 
construction traffic management).

5.26 The proposal provides sufficient levels of parking in accordance with this 
council’s parking standards, and bin storage points to meet the needs of the 
development.  Matters raised by the parish council to provide more parking for 
the existing development to the south are not justified, and a reason for refusal 
could not be defended on such grounds.  Electric charging points for market 
dwellings can be secured by condition.

5.27 The parish council raises numerous concerns on the proposed footpath links 
and do not support the footpath in the SE corner (linking through to Howard 
Cornish Road) using a shared surface.  This footpath link has not materially 
changed from that previously approved, which showed this footpath partly 
using a shared surface. While officers acknowledge the parish’s concern on 
shared surfaces, the Highway Authority did not raise any objections to this 
arrangement as part of the original application and it is considered that 
pedestrian safety will not be jeopardised through use of a shared surface for a 
small part of the site at the end of a cul-de-sac.

5.28 In relation to the other paths, the path extension to Cow Lane from Sheepstead 
Road can be secured through a S278 agreement with the county council.  The 
footway link in North Street between the Gap and Howard Cornish Road was 
not required to mitigate this development under the approved application.  
Other footpath links remain as previously approved and can be secured by 
condition.

5.29 Overall, the proposal is acceptable in respect of traffic, parking and highway 
safety and accords with saved policy DC5.

5.30 Air Quality
Part of Packhorse Lane (A415) through the village is an Air Quality 
Management Area (AQMA).  Whilst the site lies outside the AQMA, impacts of 
the additional traffic associated with this development may affect local air 
quality.  However, given the fall-back position of the extant permission, the air 
quality officer raises no objection to the proposed changes.  A condition 
requiring electric charging points on market units with garages, with a view to 
offsetting the additional traffic emissions on the local and wider road network, 
was imposed on the original permission.  Officers consider this should remain 
to ensure the development meets requirements of policy CP33.

Page 43



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

5.31 Ecology and Biodiversity
The ecological impacts of the current scheme are similar as the previously 
consented scheme.  The main habitats on the site are an area of semi 
improved grassland and areas of planted woodland and tree belts.  The 
countryside officer has assessed the application and raises no objection, 
subject to a bio-diversity enhancement strategy being prepared to minimise the 
impacts of the scheme.  This can be secured by condition, and subject to this, 
the proposal would accord with policy CP46.

5.32 Archaeology
The applicant has previously undertaken an archaeological assessment survey 
of the site.  The summary of its findings confirms that ‘while the site lies within a 
wider landscape rich in archaeological potential, nothing is recorded in its 
immediate vicinity’.  As such, there are no archaeological constraints to the 
proposed scheme and the proposal accords with saved policy HE10.

5.33 CIL & S106 contributions 
Paragraph 56 of the NPPF advises that planning obligations should only be 
sought where they meet all of the following tests:

i) Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
ii) Directly related to the development; and
iii) Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

Local Plan policy CP7 expects new development to provide the necessary on-
site, and, where appropriate, off-site infrastructure requirements arising from 
the proposal with them delivered directly by the developer and / or through an 
appropriate financial contribution.

5.34 Community Infrastructure Levy 
The council’s Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) charging schedule was 
adopted in September 2017 and implemented in November 2017 and is 
applicable to any increase in floorspace over the approved scheme. The 
application scheme proposes an increase in floor area of 308 sqm.  The site 
falls within the ‘Zone 1’ CIL charging schedule, which would be £131.33 per 
square metre of residential development (subject to index linking).  This 
equates to approximately £40,450.

5.35 S106 Contributions
The County Council previously identified that the development will increase 
pressure upon existing community infrastructure and contributions were 
secured towards increased school places and public transport improvements.

5.36 District provision secured contributions towards public art, street naming and 
waste bin provision on site.  The parish council secured contributions towards a 
new village hall, allotments, MUGA and play area.  Given the secured 
contribution towards play equipment, the parish request for play equipment to 
be provided on site is not justified.

Page 44



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

5.37 The following contributions, secured in the original application, remain fair and 
proportionate and should be subject to a deed of variation to the S106 legal 
agreement should permission be granted.

Contribution Type Amount
Oxfordshire County Council
Transport
Public transport £39,832.50
TRO amendment £5,000
Education
Marcham Primary School expansion £178,945
Larkmead Secondary School expansion £189,747
Administration and Monitoring
Administration and Monitoring costs £3,750
TOTAL £417,274.50

Vale of White Horse District Council
Waste Collection £7,990
Public Art £14,100
Street naming £670
Parish Allotments £4,065
Parish MUGA £9,908
Parish Play Equipment £3,810
Parish Village Hall £67,960
Public Open Space Maintenance £138,164
Administration and Monitoring £2,960
TOTAL £249,627
Overall Total £666,901.50

(£14,189 per dwelling)

6.0 CONCLUSION
6.1 This application has been assessed against the development plan, the National 

Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and all other material planning 
considerations. 

6.2 Whilst contrary to development plan policies CP4 and CP8, there is an extant 
planning permission on the site for 47 dwellings.  In this context, with the 
realistic prospect of that scheme being implemented, this revised proposal will 
not result in adverse harm and the proposal is considered acceptable.

6.3 In terms of the planning balance, the proposed development would perform an 
economic objective through increasing housing stock, it would contribute to an 
expansion of the local housing market and could potentially improve the 
affordability of open market housing.  In addition, the additional houses would 
help maintain existing infrastructure, creating investment in the local and wider 
economy.

6.4 The scheme would have a social objective as it will provide affordable housing 
units and other social benefits will arise through the contributions to local 

Page 45



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

infrastructure identified including towards local facilities. The proposal would 
also increase public open space which would be available to all.

6.5 The proposal will have some adverse environmental implications given the loss 
of the land for agricultural use, but there are environmental benefits in providing 
housing in an accessible location with proposed biodiversity enhancement. The 
impact is outweighed by the benefits of the development.  Overall, the proposed 
development amounts to sustainable development.

The following planning policies have been taken in to account:

Vale of White Horse Local Plan policies
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 part 1:
CP01  -  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CP03  -  Settlement Hierarchy
CP04  -  Meeting Our Housing Needs
CP07  -  Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services
CP08  -  Spatial Strategy for Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford Fringe Sub-Area
CP22  -  Housing Mix
CP23  -  Housing Density
CP24  -  Affordable Housing
CP26  -  Accommodating Current and Future Needs of the Ageing Population
CP33  -  Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility
CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
CP36  -  Electronic communications
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP38  -  Design Strategies for Strategic and Major Development Sites
CP39  -  The Historic Environment
CP40  -  Sustainable Design and Construction
CP42  -  Flood Risk
CP43  -  Natural Resources
CP44  -  Landscape
CP45  -  Green Infrastructure
CP46  -  Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity
CP47  -  Delivery and Contingency

Saved policies Local Plan 2011:
DC3  -  Design against crime
DC4  -  Public Art
DC5  -  Access
DC6  -  Landscaping
DC7  -  Waste Collection and Recycling
DC9  -  The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses
DC10  - Effect of neighbouring or previous uses on new development
DC20  - External Lighting
H23  -  Open Space in New Housing Development
HE9  -  Archaeology
HE10  -  Archaeology
HE11  -  Archaeology
NE9  -  The Lowland Vale

Page 46



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 5 December 2018

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 part 2
A publication draft of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 has been 
subject to public consultation and Examination.  Its policies are a material 
consideration although full weight cannot be given to them at present.  The 
following policies are material to the consideration of this application:

DP2 - Space Standards
DP8 - Community Services and Facilities
DP16 - Access
DP17 - Transport Assessments and Travel Plans
DP20 - Public Art
DP21 - External Lighting
DP23 - Impact of Development on Amenity
DP24 - Effect of Neighbouring or Previous Uses on New Developments
DP25 - Noise Pollution
DP26 - Air Quality
DP27 - Land Affected By Contamination
DP28 - Waste Collection and Recycling
DP33 - Open Space
DP34 - Leisure and Sports Facilities
DP36 - Heritage Assets
DP39 - Archaeology and Scheduled Monuments

Neighbourhood plan
There is no plan for Marcham Parish.

Adopted Guidance

Vale of White Horse Design Guide SPD – March 2015
Developer Contributions SPD – June 2017

Other Relevant Legislation and Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework 2018
National Planning Practice Guidance
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act) 1990 
Community & Infrastructure Levy Legislation
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
Obligations under Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010
Provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998
Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006 
The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010
Localism Act (including New Homes Bonus)

Author:          Stuart Walker
Contact No:   01235 422600
Email:            planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Page 47

mailto:planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Pedestrian access / link
to Sheepstead Road

Proposed litter bin location

E34/A2

E34/A3

E1
1/

K

TY
PE

 G

E21/B

E1
4/

J

TY
PE

 F

TYPE G

TYPE F

E11/K

E3
4/

A2

E21/B

E3
4/

A2

E1
1/

K

E14/J

TYPE H

TYPE H

TYPE H

TYPE H

E34/A2

E21/B

TY
PE

 G

E34/A3 TYPE H

TYPE H

TYPE G

TY
PE

 F
TY

PE
 F

TY
PE

 F

TYPE H

TYPE FTYPE F TYPE H

10 09 08
07 06 05

19

20

18

17

41 40
39

38
37 36 35

34

21 22 23 24

28

29

27

26

25

30

31

32

33

424344454647
E21/B

E11/K E11/K

E14/J

424344

V7

47 47

46 46 45 45 V6

0607080910

V1 V2 V3 V4 V5

17

18

19

20 21 22 23 24

25 25

26

27

28

28

29

29

30

31

31

32

32

33

34353637

38

3940

41

V8

V9

V10

V11

V12

V13

E55/F

E34/A2

E34/A3

E1
1/

K

TYPE G

E34/A3

E55/F E55/F

TYPE G

16 15 14

01

02

13

03

12

04

11

E2
1/

B

01

02

03

03

04

05
11

12

13

14

14

1516

V14

V15

V16

Extended link up to
Cow Lane

Existing tree belt

Red hatch indicates trees to be removed. See
Arboriculturalist consultation report for further
information.

Refuse lorry turning area.

Red hatch area indicates trees
to be removed.

Site access to be gained via
existing road stub

Bin collection point.

Proposed litter bin location

Blue hatch indicated extent of
trees to be reduced back

Visitor parking spaces

Pedestrian access / link
to adjacent pedestrian track

Proposed litter bin location

Blue hatch indicates the existing trees to be
reduced back.

Tactile paving at
crossing points

Tactile paving at crossing points

1.8m high brick garden wall

Bike and bin store

Bin collection point

Blue hatch indicates the existing trees to be
reduced back.

Red hatch area indicates
trees to be removed.

Turning head for refuse vehicle

Pedestrian access.

Area = 350sq.m

Area =831sq.m

Area =172sq.m

Area = 2750sq.m

Area = 450sq.m

Area =344sq.m

62.7m

62.0m

Red hatch indicates trees to be removed.
See Arboriculturalist consultation report for
further information.

1.8m high garden wall

0.8m maintenance margin

H A R D I N G    W A Y

S 
H 

E 
E 

P 
S 

T 
E 

A 
D 

   
R 

O
 A

 D

0 5 10 20 30 40

metresscale 1:500

C

notes:

this drawing and the building works depicted are the copyright of idp and may
not be reproduced or amended except by written permission. no liability will be
accepted for amendments made by other persons.

all dimensions to be checked on site and architect notified of any
discrepancies prior to commencement.
do not scale.

N
T: +44 (0)24 7652 7600   E:info@idpgroup.com

www.weareidp.com

name:comment(s):

PROJECT MANAGERS.

rev: date: check:

URBAN DESIGNERS.

WE ARE IDP.

ARCHITECTS.

(PL) 001drg no:C3538job no:

IDP GROUP  27 SPON STREET  COVENTRY  CV1 3BA

PLANNERS.

title:

scale @ a1:

date:

checked:

status: FOR COMMENT

Mactaggart and Mickelclient:

Kings Field, Marchamjob:

Proposed Site Plan

drawn:

RIBA Stage:

RE 06.09.2018

BF 1:500

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS.

1

Total Site Area: 26,163 sq.m

15% of Total Site:   3,925 sq.m

POS Provided:   4,897 sq.m

Visitor Parking Spaces:      16

PROPOSED SITE PLAN
1:500

Appendix 1

P
age 48



AREA - 820sqm

1

2

3

4

5

6 7 8

9

10

11

12 13 14 15 16 17

18

19
20 21 22 23 24

25

26

27

28

29 30 31
32 33 34 35

36

AREA - 200sqm

AR
EA

 - 
26

0s
qm

AREA - 2750sqm

37

38

39

41

40

42

AREA - 450sqm

AREA - 350sqm 4344454647

VV

V

V

V V

BIN COLLECTION 
POINT

BIN COLLECTION 
POINT

46

46

41

4242

41

40

40

39

39

38

38

37

37

V

V

V

V

BIN

BIN

BIN

BIN

BIN

V

V

V V

V

V

0 25

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

client name

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford,  OX33  1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:500  @  A1

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

30/11/16 CT

Kings Field, Marcham - Phase 2

Mrs King-Thompson & Mrs Shorthouse

14068 - PP1020 - K

PLANNING

 1 : 500
PROPOSED SITE PLAN

Total Site Area:
26163sqm 

15% of Total  Site:
3925qm

POS Space provided:
4830sqm

Visitor Spaces : 16

Market

4 Bed 9 (GIA 1316sqm/14,165sqft)

3 Bed  14 (GIA 1380sqm/14854sqft)

2 Bed  8 (GIA 654sqm/7040sqft)

TOTAL GIA: 3350sqm/36059sqft

Affordable

3 Bed 6 (GIA 594sqm/6393sqft)

2 Bed 10 (GIA 800sqm/8611sqft)

TOTAL GIA: 1394sqm/15,866sqft

TOTAL 47 UNITS
TOTAL GIA 4744sqm/51,064sqft

ACCOMMODATION 
SCHEDULE

(Units 16, 17, 18, 19, 
24, 29 32, 33, 36)

(Units 4, 5, 14, 15, 20, 
21, 25, 26, 27, 28, 30, 
31, 34, 35)

(Units 1, 2, 3, 11, 12, 
13, 22, 23)

(Units 9, 10, 37, 38 
43, 44)

(Units 6, 7, 8, 39, 40, 
41, 42, 45, 46, 47)

pedestrian access

1.8m boundary wall, foundations 
to specialist's details

pedestrian access to adjacent 
pedestrian track

pedestrian acces/link to 
Sheepstead Road

visitor spaces

turning area for refuse 
vehicle

turning head for refuse vehicle

site access to be gained via 
existing road stub

red hatch indicates trees to be 
removed.

existing tree belt

pedestrian access

red hatch indicates trees to be 
removed.

blue hatch indicates extent of 
trees to be reduced back

green hatch indicates trees 
recommended for removal in 
safety survey and also trees 
recommended for removal as part 
of ongoing management. See 
Arboriculturalist Consultant's reports 
for further information.

green hatch indicates trees 
recommended for removal in safety 
survey and also trees recommended for 
removal as part of ongoing management. 
See Arboriculturalist Consultant's reports for 
further information.

1.8m high brick garden wall

1.8m high brick garden wall

1.8m high brick garden wall

proposed bin location

proposed bin location

proposed bin location

proposed bin location

bin and bike store

bin collection point
bin collection point

blue hatch indicates the existing 
trees to be reduced back

A 05/12/16 UNIT AREAS AND BOUNDARY TREES
AMENDED.

B 06/12/16 LAYOUT AMENDED TO SUIT REFUSE
TRACKING.

C 10/02/17 AMENDMENTS FOLLOWING DTM,
PLANNING COMMENTS & ADDITIONAL
TREE SURVEY & INFORMATION.

D 16/02/17 ADDITIONAL TREE INFO ADDED - AIA &
TCP

E 10/03/17 AMENDMENTS TO REFLECT INITIAL
COMMENTS FROM TREE OFFICER.

F 14/03/17 AMENDMENTS FOLLOWING MEETING ON
SITE BETWEEN TREE OFFICER & TREE
CONSULTANT & PLANNING COMMENTS.

G 20/03/17 AMENDMENTS TO NORTHERN &
EASTERN BOUNDARIES TO REFLECT
TREE SURVEY INFORMATION

H 23/03/17 ADDITIONAL TREES INDICATED FOR
REMOVAL TO REFLECT AIA DRAWING.

I 09/05/17 AMENDMENTS FOLLOWING PLANNING
COMMENTS.

J 22/05/17 ACCOMMODATION / AREAS SCHEDULE
AMENDED.

K 26/05/17 TACTILE PAVING AND MAINTENANCE
AREA ADDED.

800mm maintenance margin

800mm maintenance margin

extended link up to 
Cow Lane

hatch indicates tactile paving at 
crossing points

Appendix 2

P
age 49


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	7 P18/V1820/FUL - Land south of Red Gables, Kings Lane, Faringdon, SN7 7SS
	P18/V1820/FUL - Land south of Red Gables, Kings Lane, Faringdon - Appendices
	Appendix 1_committee report
	Appendix 1 Planning committee minutes - 31 October 2018 (1)
	Minutes

	Location Plan drwgno 1369 04
	Block Plan drwgno 1369 S 01 B
	Floor Plans and Elevations Proposed drwgno 1369-02 Rev C
	Landscape Plan drwgno 1369 S 03
	Red Gables Details
	Drainage Details drwgno 1151-S03 Rev B


	8 P18/V2470/FUL - Land off Sheepstead Road, Marcham, Abingdon
	P18/V2470/FUL - Land off Sheepstead Road, Marcham, Abingdon - Appendices
	Site Plan Proposed drwgno PL 001
	Site Plan Proposed drwgno 14068 - PP1020 - K
	Sheets
	PP1020 - PROPOSED SITE PLAN







